
 
The Legislature of Rockland County 

 

PHILIP SOSKIN 
LEGISLATOR-DISTRICT 7 
CHAIR, MULTI-SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
 
 MINUTES 

MULTI-SERVICES COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY APRIL 26, 2016 

6:30 PM 
 
 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    OTHERS PRESENT:  T. HUMBACH 
LEG. P. SOSKIN, CHAIR   LEG. J. HOOD, JR  S. POWERS 
LEG. T. EARL, VICE CHAIR   LEG. D. JOBSON  DR. P. RUPPERT 
LEG. A. PAUL, 2ND VICE CHAIR  LEG. M. GRANT  R. HANSEN 
LEG. A, WIEDER    LEG. N. LOW-HOGAN  M. DONOGHUE 
LEG. V. TYER     LEG. C. CAREY  M. LEITZES 
      LEG. P. MORONEY  C. MASSARD 
MEMBERS ABSENT:    LEG. L. SANTULLI  D. CASTRO 
LEG. I. SCHOENBERGER   P. VOIE   L. INCALCATERRA 
LEG. C. FALCIGLIA 
 
CHAIR SOSKIN CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT: 6:35 PM. 
 
 
1. REF.#9361 AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSIONER OF HEALTH TO APPOINT EIGHT (8) DEPUTY 
  COUNTY EMS COORDINATORS [DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH] 
  (EDWIN J. DAY COUNTY EXECUTIVE) DL#: 2016-00795 
 
MOTION TO DISCUSS: 
SOSKIN/PAUL 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE: 
SOSKIN/PAUL, TYER          UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Chair Soskin announced that he is moving this resolution to a discussion item.  Looking over the paper work and not 
knowing much about the EMS Coordinators, Leg. Soskin said he had some questions and had to get in touch with the DOH 
for answers. 
 
Dr. Patricia Schnabel Ruppert, Commissioner of Health explained that these are deputes that are not paid, they are 
voluntary. They are supported only in the equipment that they would need, but for the duties that they perform they receive 
no money.  These are people who are very capable at what they do and they assist us at no charge at all to the County. They 
will not be used for any other purpose or initiatives.  They will not go out  and do inspections and they will only be doing 
the job that they are assigned to, which is assisting our EMS coordinator and activities out in the field. 



 
Multi-Services Committee 
Minutes  
Page 2 

 
 
 
Chair Soskin said that he had requested from the department a printout, which dealt with the functions, and was left with 
the impression that the Coordinator who is an EMS worker who is very familiar with all the EMS personnel would be 
doing all the appointing.  Based on that Leg. Soskin added that therefore he thought that all of this recruiting would be 
under the Office of the Fire and Emergency Services 
 
Chair Soskin asked if they only have one vacancy at this time why do they need to fill 8 positions? 
 
Dr. Ruppert explained that presently 6 positions are already filled and 2 more are looking to be filled, because they have 
the need.  EMS is under the Department of Health therefore recruiting can be done by the DOH.  There is more work to be 
done and not everyone is available at all times, especially since it is voluntary services. 
 
Chair Soskin added that he was also under the impression that they had to come before the Committee for approval and 
from what he is seeing some of them did and some didn't. 
 
Dr. Ruppert stated that over the years it was done in different ways but going forward the DOH would be handling all 
voluntary appointments as long as they are properly recruited. 
 
Chair Soskin thanked the volunteers for coming down, it was very informative and suggested for all the Committee 
Colleagues to vote for this resolution. 
 
2. REF.#7099 CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF ALMAR J. SOLIS, SUFFERN, NEW YORK TO THE 
  ROCKLAND COUNTY FAIR HOUSING BOARD 
  (EDWIN J. DAY COUNTY EXECUTIVE) DL#: 2016-01295 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE: 
SOSKIN/PAUL           UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
 
3. REF.#8862 APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF CONTINUATION GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $492,015 
  [NCTD] WHICH IS FEDERALLY FUNDED BUT ADMINISTERED BY THE NEW YORK CITY 
  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE (DOHMH) TO HELP FUND ROCKLAND 
  COUNTY'S RYAN WHITE PART A MEDICAL CASE MANAGEMENT, EARLY INTERVENTION 
  SERVICES AND HOUSING GRANT FOR HIV/AIDS PROGRAMS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 
  MARCH 1, 2016 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2017, APPROPRIATING $1,000 [NCTD] OF  
  EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THESE  
  PROGRAMS, RESULTING IN A TOTAL APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $493,015, 
  APPROVING THE ACCOMPANYING AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF $100,000 WITH DOHMH 
  AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXCUTE ALL NECESSARY  
  INSTRUMENTS AND DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THE AGREEMENT WITH DOHMH 
  [DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH] ($493,015) 
  (PATRICIA SCHNABEL RUPPERT COMMISSIONER OF HEALTH) DL#: 2016-00597 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/26/16 
SOSKIN/TYER, PAUL          UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Chair Soskin stated that he needed more clarification on the appropriation of $1,000 with no County tax dollars for the 
employee health insurance reimbursement. 
 
Ron Hansen, Deputy Commissioner Department of Health, explained that the budget put out an annual reference where 
they report these grant funds as a revenue and on the other side as an expense. 



 
Multi-Services Committee 
Minutes 
Page 3 

 
 
 
Chair Soskin stated he will pursue further clarification of this matter before the next meeting. 
 
Leg. Paul asked how long DOH has been receiving this grant? 
 
Mr. Hansen answered 19 years 
 
Leg. Paul asked how many people has this program served? 
 
Maura Donoghue, Director Department of Health, stated 250 people benefited from the program last year, 24 new patients 
are admitted into the clinic and 180 patients currently in care.  Testing location sites just to name a few are Dominican 
College, RCC, Friedman Center and soon services will be available at The Salvation Army. 
 
Chair Soskin ask that a copy of the records requested be sent to the Committee Clerk. 
 
4. REF.#9173 APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
  COUNTY OF ROCKLAND ON BEHALF OF ITS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND THE TOWN 
  OF CLARKSTOWN TO IMPLEMENT THE COMMUNITY COMPONENT OF THE CREATING  
  HEALTHY SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITIES GRANT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $12,000 
  FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 1, 2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND  
  AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE THE INTERMUNICIPAL  
  AGREEMENT [DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH] ($12,000) 
  (PATRICIA SCHNABEL RUPPERT COMMISSIONER OF HEALTH) DL#:2016-01101 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/26/16 
SOSKIN/TYER, PAUL, EARL         UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Mr. Hansen explained that the goal of this project is to increase access and adoption to healthy, affordable food as well as 
to educate community members. This wellness program is offered in many towns where they educate the public and the 
schools on the benefits of eating healthy. 
 
5. REF.#2973A APPROVING THE AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF $100,000 WITH VCS, INC. FOR ACCESSIBLE 
  AND AFFORDABLE COUNSELING, TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL AND ADVOCACY 
  SERVICES TO ALL RESIDENTS REGARDLESS OF THEIR ABILITY TO PAY FEES  
  ASSOCIATED WITH ANY SERVICE IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $162,515 FOR 
  THE CALENDAR YEAR 2016 WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWO (2) 
  ONE (1) YEAR TERMS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE THE 
  AGREEMENT [DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] ($162,515) 
  (MICHAEL LEITZES COMMISSIONER OF MENTAL HEALTH) DL#: 2016-01108  
 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/26/16 
SOSKIN/EARL, WIEDER         UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Michael Leitzes, Commissioner of Mental Health reminded the Committee that VCS is an important player in the 
community. 
 
Chair Soskin asked if this agreement was a straight contract with the non-profit money? 
 
Mr. Leitzes answered yes, and added that it will be used to support the agency in the work that they do. 
 
 



 
Multi-Services Committee 
Minutes 
Page 4 
 
 
 
6. REF.#2973B AMENDING THE 2016 BUDGET BY APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF ADDITIONAL  
  FUNDS FROM THE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
  SERVICES (OASAS) TO THE ROCKLAND COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH  
  WHICH ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO OPEN ARMS. INC. FOR RADIATOR COVERS AT THE 
  WOMEN'S COMMUNITY RESIDENCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,073 FOR THE CALENDAR 
  YEAR 2014 AND IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,300 FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2015 FOR A TOTAL 
  AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,373 [NCTD] AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
  TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THE APPLICABLE CONTRACT 
  AMENDMENT [DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] ($7,373) 
  (MICHAEL LEITZES COMMISSIONER OF MENTAL HEALTH) DL#: 2016-00768  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/26/16 
SOSKIN/EARL, PAUL          UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Chair Soskin asked why is this first coming up now? 
 
Mr. Leitzes answered that it's because initially they couldn't get appropriate approval.  The capital through OASAS didn't 
work so OASAS decided to reimburse them. 
 
Chair Soskin asked if it was allowed to roll it over paying prior years in the current year? 
 
Mr. Leitzes explained that they funded us this year for prior years as an exception. 
 
Chair Soskin stated that he was surprised that this can be done, but will approved the funds to be distributed to Open Arms, 
Inc for radiator covers at the Women's Community Residence 
 
7. REF.#2973C APPROVING THE AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF $100,000 WITH VILLAGE OF HAVERSTRAW 
  (REACHOUT) FOR NARCOTICS ADDICTION CONTROL AND PREVENTION PROGRAMS FOR 
  CHILDREN AND ADULTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $216,592 [NCTD] FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 
  2016 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
  [DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] ($216,592) 
  (MICHAEL LEITZES COMMISSIOINER OF MENTAL HEALTH) DL#: 2016-00868 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/26/16 
SOSKIN/PAUL, WIEDER, EARL        UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
Leg. Paul asked what are the different programs offered though this resolution? 
 
Mr. Leitzes explained that approval of this funding will be allocated to the Village of Haverstraw for narcotics addiction 
control and prevention programs for children and adults. 
 
Leg. Paul asked what other programs can they put in place to prevent drug use and how many children are taking 
advantage of this initiatives? 
 
Chair Soskin asked if these services are also being used in other areas in the County such as Orangetown. 
 
Mr. Leitzes will need to send these information's to the clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Multi-Services Committee 
Minutes 
Page 5 

 
 
8.REF.#6760 APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM RECEIPT IN EXCESS OF $100,000 WITH THE ROCKLAND 
  COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $115,000 FOR ADMINISTRATION OF 
  THE ASSSIGNED COUNSEL PLAN FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH 
  DECEMBER 31, 2016 [DEPARTMENT OF LAW] ($115,000) 
  (THOMAS E. HUMBACH COUNTY OF ATTORNEY) DL#: 2016-01377 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE:      TRANSFERRED TO B&F 4/28/16 
SOSKIN/EARL           UNAN 
 
ADDED SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, PAUL, WIEDER, JOBSON 
 
 
9. REF.#3657 REQUESTING THAT THE NEW YORK STATE LEGISLATURE TO PASS BILLS A. 8580A AND 
  S.782 ENACTING THE "SAFE STAFFING FOR QUALITY CARE ACT" 
  ( HON. ANY PAUL LEGISLATURE)  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE: 
PAUL/EARL, WIEDER, SOSKIN, TYER       UNAN 
 
ADDED CO-SPONSORS:LEGS. SOSKIN, EARL, WIEDER, TYER, GRANT, HOOD, JR., LOW-HOGAN,  
    MORONEY, CAREY, SANTULLI  
 
Leg. Paul explained that as a Nurse Practitioner the number of patients assigned to a nurse has a direct impact on the 
quality of care that nurse can provide. 
 
Mrs. Carol Massard, Nyack Hospital representative, said that she is in favor to pass Bills A. 8580A and S. 782 and asked 
the Committee to please support this resolution on Safe Staffing for Quality Care Act. Safe nurse staffing reduces 
avoidable, adverse patient outcomes. 
 
Chair Soskin asked if the law being proposed stipulates a specific amount of nurses to be assigned to a specific amount of 
patients? 
 
Mrs. Massard answered that what they are really asking is nurse staffing ratios in hospitals, if achieved there will be a 
better outcome for nurses and patients. 
 
Chair Soskin thanked everyone who was in favor of this bill and for their support.  He concluded by stating it's a memorial 
resolution, but a powerful one. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN: 7:15 PM        UNAN 
 
Respectfully, Submitted 
 
Lesly Senatus, Committee Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MS.4/26/16 MIN/LS 
 
 

Rockland County Legislature -11 New Hempstead Road - New City, New York 10956 - Tel: (845) 638-5100 
      Visit us:  http://rocklandgov.com/departments/county-legislature/ 
              Like us on Facebook:  https://www.facebook.com/rockleg 


